Public Document Pack

Havering

ALTBERTYX LONDON BOROUGH

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE
TROPOJA CAFE & BAR

AGENDA
Tuesday Council Chamber -
10.30:am 22 August 2017 Town Hall

Members 3: Quorum 2
COUNCILLORS:

Linda Trew (Chairman)
Jody Ganly
Keith Roberts

For information about the meeting please contact:
Richrad Cursons - 01708 432430
richard.cursons@onesource.co.uk




Licensing Sub-Committee, 22 Auqust 2017

Protocol for members of the public wishing to report on meetings of the London
Borough of Havering

Members of the public are entitled to report on meetings of Council, Committees and Cabinet,
except in circumstances where the public have been excluded as permitted by law.

Reporting means:-

e filming, photographing or making an audio recording of the proceedings of the meeting;

e using any other means for enabling persons not present to see or hear proceedings at
a meeting as it takes place or later; or

e reporting or providing commentary on proceedings at a meeting, orally or in writing, so
that the report or commentary is available as the meeting takes place or later if the
person is not present.

Anyone present at a meeting as it takes place is not permitted to carry out an oral commentary
or report. This is to prevent the business of the meeting being disrupted.

Anyone attending a meeting is asked to advise Democratic Services staff on 01708 433076
that they wish to report on the meeting and how they wish to do so. This is to enable
employees to guide anyone choosing to report on proceedings to an appropriate place from
which to be able to report effectively.

Members of the public are asked to remain seated throughout the meeting as standing up and
walking around could distract from the business in hand.



Licensing Sub-Committee, 22 Auqust 2017

AGENDA ITEMS

1 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND ANNOUNCEMENT OF SUBSTITUTE
MEMBERS

(if any) - receive
2 DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS

Members are invited to disclose any interest in any of the items on the agenda at this
point of the meeting.

Members may still disclose any interest in an item at any time prior to the
consideration of the matter.

3 CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENT

The Chairman will announce details of the arrangements in case of fire or other
events that might require the meeting room or building’s evacuation.

4 APPLICATION FOR A PREMISES LICENCE FOR TROPOJA CAFE & BAR 99
VICTORIA ROAD, ROMFORD ESSEX RM1 2LX (Pages 1 - 56)

Andrew Beesley
Head of Democratic Services



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 4
Havering

e LONDON BOROUG H

LICENSING REPORT
SUB-COMMITTEE

22 August 2017

Subject Heading: Procedure for the Hearing: Licensing
Act 2003

Report Author and contact details: Richard Cursons (01708) 432430
e-mail: richard.cursons@onesource.co.uk

Members are advised that, when considering application for a premises licence,
the following options are available to them by virtue of the Licensing Act 2003, Part
3, section 35, paragraphs 3 and 4:

"Where relevant representations are made, the authority must

(a) hold a hearing to consider them, unless the authority, the applicant and
each person who has made such representations agree that a hearing is
unnecessary, and

(b) having regard to the representations, take such steps as it considers
necessary for the promotion of the licensing objectives.

The steps are:
a) modify the conditions of the licence
b) reject the whole or part of the application

and for this purpose, the conditions of the licence are modified if any of them
is altered or omitted or any new condition is added.”

The Sub-Committee will also wish to note that, if none of these steps is required,
the application must be granted.

Assuming that the Sub-Committee is satisfied that a hearing is required, then the
following procedural steps are recommended. The Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings)
Regulations 2005 will govern the arrangements for the hearing of the application
now under consideration. This report accords with the requirements of that Act and
the Regulations, and in particular Regulations 21-25 (procedure at the hearing).

Page 1



1. Membership of the Sub-Committee:

1.1

The Sub-Committee comprises three members of the Licensing Committee,
with a quorum of two members. Unless there are objections, in the
absence of three members, the hearing shall proceed with the quorum
of two.

11.1 A member of the Licensing Committee will be excluded from hearing
an application where he or she has considered an application in
respect of the premises in the previous 12 months as a Member of
the Regulatory Services Committee; or

1.41.2 is a Ward Councillor for the Ward in which the premises, subject to
the application, are located; or

113 is a Ward Councillor for a Ward which is likely to be affected by the
application or;

1.1.4 has a personal interest in the application.

2. Roles of other participants:

2.1

2.2

The Legal Advisor is not a party to the hearing. The role of the Legal Advisor
is to provide legal advice relating to the application and submissions.

The Clerk is not a party to the hearing. The role of the Clerk is to record the
hearing and the decisions of the Sub-Committee, and ensure efficient
administration

3. Location and facilities:

3.1

8.2

All hearings will be heard at the Havering Town Hall unless otherwise
directed.

Interpreters will be provided by the Council on request, provided notice is
given at least five working days before the hearing.

4. Notification of attendance:

4.1

The Chairman will enquire of the parties who is in attendance and the
parties will indicate their names (and, where relevant, whom they represent).
A register will be circulated before the commencement of the hearing on
which the applicant, his/her advisers and companions and all interested
parties (and/or their representatives) will be asked to record their
attendance.

5. Procedural matters:

5.1

Prior to the commencement of the hearing, the Chairman of the Sub-
Committee will orally inform the parties whether their applications to have
certain people attend the hearing (e.g. witnesses) have been granted or
refused. Note this relates to people other than those attending on behalf of a
party in the capacity as a representative of the party.

Page 2



5.2

Prior to the commencement of the hearing the Chairman of the Sub-
Committee will outline the procedure to be followed at the hearing. This will
normally be as follows:

Introduction of the application:

The Licensing officer will outline:

* details of the application and relevant representations received from the
parties;

» relevant legislation ;

* relevant Licensing Policy; and

e the time limit in which the Council must reach a determination.

Documentary evidence:

e Documentary or other information in support of applications,
representations or notices should be provided to the Clerk of the Sub-
Committee at least 7 clear working days before the hearing. If this
information is produced at the hearing it will only be taken into account
by the Sub-Committee if the Sub-Committee and all the parties consent
to its submission. Permission to have this information included in the
hearing should be requested at the beginning of the hearing before any
oral submissions have been made.

» Statements made by people in support of a party’s representation who
are not present at the hearing, must be signed by the maker, dated and
witnessed by another person. The statement must also contain the
witness’s full name and occupation.

Representations:

e The chairman will invite each of the parties at the hearing or their
representative sequentially to address the Sub-Committee and call any
person/s to whom permission has been granted to appear. Each party
will be allowed a maximum period of 10 minutes in which to address the
Sub-Committee and call persons on his/her behalf.

e This 10 minute period is where each party has the opportunity to orally
address the Sub-Committee and clarify any points in which the Sub-
Committee has sought clarification prior to the hearing. This 10 minute
period should be uninterrupted unless a member of the Sub-Committee
or Legal Advisor considers that the speaker is making submissions that
are irrelevant, frivolous or vexatious.

* Members of the Sub-Committee may ask questions of any party, at any
time during the proceedings. Time taken in dealing with a Member's
question will not be taken into account in determining the length of time
available to the party in question to make their representation.

Page 3



The sequence in which each of the parties will be invited to address the
Sub-Committee will normally be in the order of:

the Chief Officer of Police;

the Fire Authority;

the Health and Safety at Work Enforcing Authority;

the Local Planning Authority;

the Local environmental Health Authority;

the Local Weights and Measures Authority;

the Authority Responsible for the Protection of Children from Harm;

a navigation or other authority responsible for waterways; and

any other party that has submitted representations in respect of the
application, certificate, notice or other matter appearing before the
Sub-Committee;

e the party that has submitted the application, certificate, notice or
other matter appearing before the Sub-Committee.

At the discretion of the Sub-Committee the above order may be varied.
Cross-Examination:

Where witnesses have been permitted by the Sub-Committee to speak at
the hearing on behalf of a party, permission must be sought from the Sub-
Committee before another party can ask the witness questions. This
process of questioning is normally referred to as cross-examination. The
Sub-Committee will allow cross-examination only where it is necessary to
assist it in considering the representations or application.

Relevance:

Information submitted at the hearing must be relevant to the applications,
representations, or notice and the promotion of the licensing objectives. The
Chairman of the Sub-Committee is entitled to exclude any information it
considers to be irrelevant whether presented in written or oral form. The
licensing objectives are:

The prevention of crime and disorder;
Public safety;
The prevention of public nuisance; and

The protection of children from harm.

6. Failure of parties to attend the hearing:

6.1

If a party, who has not given prior notice of his/her intention not to attend the
hearing, is absent from the hearing the Sub-Committee may either adjourn
the hearing or hold the hearing in the party’s absence. Where the hearing is
held in the absence of a party, the Sub-Committee will still consider the
application, representation or notice submitted by that party.

Page 4



7. Adjournments and extension of time:

7.1

The Sub-Committee may adjourn a hearing to a specified date or extend a
notice period except where it must make a determination within certain time
limits in the following specific applications:

* Review of premises licences following closure orders where the Sub-
committee must make a determination within 28 days of receiving notice
of the closure order.

8. Sub-Committee’s determination of the hearing:

8.1

8.2

8.3

At the conclusion of the hearing the Sub-Committee will deliberate in private
accompanied by the Clerk and the Legal Advisor who will be available to
assist the Sub-Committee with any legal problems but will not participate in
any decision making of the Sub-Committee.

The Sub-Committee will normally make its determination and announce its
decision at the end of the hearing.

Where all parties have notified the Sub-Committee that a hearing is not
required the Sub-Committee must make its determination within 10 working
days of being given notice that the hearing is not required.

9. Power to exclude people from hearing:

9.1

110.

10.1

The public are entitled to attend the hearing as spectators. However, the

Sub-Committee may exclude any person from the hearing including any

person assisting or representing a party where:

* it considers that the public interest would be best served by excluding
the public or the individual person from the hearing; or

* that person is behaving in a disruptive manner. This may include a party
who is seeking to be heard at the hearing. In the case where a party is to
be excluded, the party may submit to the Sub-Committee in writing any
information which they would have been entitled to give orally had they
not been required to leave the hearing.

Recording of proceedings:

A written record of the hearing will be produced and kept for 6 years from
the date of the determination of the hearing.

11. Power to vary procedure:

11..1 The Sub-committee may depart from following any of the procedures set out

in this document if it considers the departure to be necessary in order to
consider an application, notice or representation.

Page 5



Page 6



Havering

WIS LOND O N BOROUGH

LICENSING REPORT
SUB-COMMITTEE

22 August 2017

Subject heading: Tropoja Cafe & Bar

99 Victoria Road, Romford, RM1 2L.X
Application for a Premises Licence
Report author and contact details: Mr Conway, Licensing Officer

5" floor Mercury House
licensing@havering.gov.uk

01708 432555

This application for a new premises licence is made by Adil Haziri under section
17 of the Licensing Act 2003. The application was received by Havering’s
Licensing Authority on 5" July 2017.

Geographical description of the area and description of the building

The premise is a semi-detached ground floor single unit situated next to one other shop
in Victoria Road, Romford. It is situated on the east footway approximately 136 metres
south of the junction with Mercury Gardens. There are residential flats directly above 99
and 101 Victoria Road. There are also residential properties directly opposite.

Similar premises in the vicinity are a Café at 107 Victoria Road which has a Premises
Licence authorised with the sale of alcohol, Monday to Saturday, between the hours of
11:00 — 22:00 and Sunday between 11:00 — 14:30.

A map of the area is attached.

Details of the application

The applicant seeks to provide:

Supply of Alcohol, Opening Hours -
Day Start __| Finish
Monday 10:00 ~128:00
Tuesday | 10:00 _123:.00
Wednesday |10:00  [23:00 |
Thursday 10:00  ]23:00
Friday 10:00 2300 |
Saturday | 10:00 . |2300 |
Sunday  [10:00 [21.00 |
Page 7

O:\Flare\masters\Licensing Cttee Rpt.doc



Licensing Sub-Committee, dd mmmm yyyy

There is no request for any non-standard timings or seasonal variations

Comments and observations on the application

The applicant acted in accordance with regulations 25 and 26 of The Licensing Act
2003 (Premises licences and club premises certificates) Regulations 2005 relating to
the advertising of the application. The required public notice was installed in the 14"
July 2017 edition of the Romford Recorder.

Since the original application was submitted on the 5™ July 2017, the licensing office
has received an amended operating schedule removing Late Night Refreshment and
Recorded Music from the application. This amendment was submitted on the31st July
2017 which is 2 days before the consultation period end date. :

The Premise is situated just outside of the Ring Road which circles Romford Town
Centre so it falls just outside of the Cumulative Impact Zone.

Summary

There were 1 representations against this application from interested persons.

There were 3 representations against this application from responsible authorities. The
Licensing Authority and Planning Department.

Page 8

O:\Flare\masters\Licensing Cttee Rpt.doc



LZEYZ000) A3ning soueupig

) . EPEVEF BOLLO 9L
£10Z swybu sseqejep pue WBLAdos umon o ase Ly EomEum PEOY WIB ‘B UMO |

Honowoa NDAGNOT] wEme ]
uuase (o ybnolog LUopuo] D C _n_ w\/ m I .»H‘v -

bV :9z1g ey
£10z AInr 99 :ajeq _acw_dﬂmmm m...ﬂwm /4 ma_m
008:1 :ajeag " - yp&.lﬂfd ’
X716 LINY Piojwioy peoy eLIojoIA 66 efodos)

= s
n-.\n -
= lli
- .
gl . \.r..t
e e
s -
i R
=i o=
....rntu e
= A P
iz et k|
\ L : >
b < e L -
) S :
- o . F e
- - B e ‘Ilq
e S o it 0 o
= - o -5 ! g >
e oo o7 G >
= e e v )
N 2wt VeIt b
- - Tanas \ 9UIB1IOT h. “
- o - . Uit “
B e L \ oh L s h
- o Ny ! Qv i
T - 5 b Y
- s il
o - o - -
. S I ‘ i -
= g - — L oSE
P ol 4
= -=F i L \ ‘ P
P oy g 0 X . =
=T il 5 % 3 Z
~ s 3 b
o Al 3y y

\ ,
k ;-
s - -
" -
£ - -
‘.ﬁ'
-
e
=
- - - ’
- el
b = pr
L s
ow Sl
v ow -
Fa L= —




Page 10



ROAD TRAFFIC REGULATION ACT 1984 - SECTION 14(1)
THE HAVERING [BERWICK ROAD) TEMPORARY PROHIBITION OF

1. Tha Council of he London Borough of Haverin
to make an Order untder seation 14(1) of tho Road Traffic Regulation Act 1584 thit effpct of

N

©

It the Ovdar s mada,

Legal and Public Notices

Application for =
ars Licenes
v

LONDON BOROUGH OF HAVERING

TRAFFIC ORDER 2017

Friday July 14, 2017, Recorder

LONDON BOROUGH OF HAVERING
ROAD TRAFFIC REGULATION AGT 1984 - SECTION 14{1)

THE HAVERING (CORNELL WAY, BURLAND ROAD, PARKSIDE AVENUE,
CLAY TYE HOAD, AVON ROAD AND MUNGO PARK ROAD) [TEMPORARY
FPROHIBITION OF TRAFFIC) ORDER 2017
- The Couinell of the Lontan Borough of Havering HEREBY GIVES NOTICE that an 141h
duly 2017 it made 'The Havering (Cormell Way, Budand Rogd, Parkside Avanus, Clay Ty
o, Avan Roard and Mungo Park Road) Tamporary Frohibltion of Trattie Qrelar 2017 (*tia
e} the etect of which would ba 1o temporarnily prohibit vehicular traffic from roring
ar procending in the lengths of the roads specified in column 1of the tablo to the Sthedile
In this Notice to enable cariagewsy mpall works thateon (“the Warks"),

2. Tha prohibitions specifiod in Article 1 atiove are necessary because tha Works are being

65

i . lieernt cary e ey
length of the road specified in column 1 of 1hie tabite 10 the Schedule i this Notice to onatiie s < gyn F‘m‘k‘ﬁ
Natiosil Grid contractors to (nstall & 1w @as connegtion therean (“the Works") b S Tag na By

A Wimmag i e

- Tha prohibitions specified In Article 1 above ams necessary bscauss the Works T s

ara ta be execated on ar neor the szl rond and the fikelinood of danaer 1o tho pubilic, Ty 2-.-,-:-.:;-'3?:
e 1 i .

the Oider shall come fnte operation on S1at July 2017 and would be Ty Mooy tayter o u
valid for & maximum period of 18 mantlss or untl the Works are comploted, whichever (5 [ e 10 & e Limas

IHe sooner, The Works aro scheduled to commencs on tha dites spegitiod in column 2 of {5 e Ayl
tha 1able-in the Schidute. e e e By vy

IS

The prohibitions spacilisd would only be operstinnal at such times ds destribed In delymn

S0n | B P 1 e,
TS

2 of the table to the Schodulzin this Notise and gz shall from time to time be Indicated

by the' display of traffic sions on the strest pursuant to Section 68
Renulptioh Act 1884,

5. An

ol the Road Traffic

ted on o ndar s said toads and the kelihoed of danger to tha public.

3. The Order shall colme inlo opartion an 14th July 2017 and would be valid for a mainmn
Rariod of T8 months de until the Works e completed, whichever is tho seoner, The Wrks
e sehaduled to comimence on the dates spocified in column 2 of tha table In thi Sehaduty,

4, The prohibitions specified wil anly b operational at such times as described in eolumn 2
oihe labla to the Schodule in this Notice and as shall from time to tirme b Indicatad by the

display of traffic signs on the stroet pursuant 1o Section 68 of the Read TraHic Reaufation
Acl 1884

ARZE SCATFOLDMG 110 o
aguanmmnn "

o

aceessible for pedesirians from, snd anly from the said road. Ao 00 LN
- Saction 16(1) RTRA states *A persan who conlravenss, of wh Uses i periits the use of B

avohicla in contravention
14 of this Act shall be quilty of an offencs”, Tha maxitmum parialty B summiry conviction

1= E1000.

7. Alternative routes will be available for use and are identified in column 3 of the table to the
Schedule in this Notice

8. Persons hawing a qusiy concerning these Works or

f ption would be provided in this Proposnd Ondor to pormit pedestrion dccoss ot s
any time: ko any premisss situated on or adjacent 10 th sl o o 1o any other pramises - | Tols 1L il

Vo a0 TRENT n"r:E-F'E{'
=

mu aife e i
Idlegy) naw e
g ) b1 Ll
e e S wrpt T W
adf b sbacud e

« areatriction of prohitiition imposed by an ordlit Lindor seetlon

5. An exemp

is provided in the Ordar 1o pemit padastion access at any fime to any

o ted on or to the sald rads or o any oiher premises acciasible for

Pedestrinng fram, and only from the sald mas,

6. Altarniative roules will be available for use and are identified in column 3 of the table to the
schedule in this notice.

7. Persong having a query concerning these Works or the proposed Order should email Bryn,
iellis&hevering.gov.uk

the proposed Order should email

DATED this 14th July 2017

Published in Rom anordnrmFriduy‘l'lJulyZOﬂ

Daniel Fanwick, Directar of Legal & Governance

London Barough of Havering, Town Hall, Main Hoad, Romford RM1 38D

sohemes@havering.goy.uk gl - SCLD;JLE :
DATED this 14th July 2017 e . ] AL
Published in Romford Fiaco_ fer on Friday 14 July 2017 Carrmaren's ey R';ad/ ngéh of Roa'd Duration of Works Alternative | {a]
Daniel Fenwlek, Director of Legnl & G _ Emgmminrr':" \'ﬁzﬁm o BETWEEN: Lodge Lane
London Borough of Havering, Town Hall, Main Road, Romford RM1 38D OIS WINIFRED Closad b Tite 09:30 hoirs to 16:30 h]nws o&; 4th July TllJBrpln A\Irﬁn;:e
Poricant st Toadem det 1430 netlan of Lotee Leps | 2017 oF L ian complition of the works, acon Linl
- SCHEDaULE g ?Mnm..’r,:a} o | and Cartar Diive wﬁgh@,m—.s the sooner Carter Drive
retrtaiio e
Road/Length of Road Duration of Works Alternative Route/s ﬁ'ufm .;'ﬁ' e TE"E‘D ﬁumnydc#)%éo of BETWEEN.
T‘*WM“‘,‘Y,F};‘:;‘? d S SR S | Closed betweenits | 08:00 hours ta 100 hoursan 17th July | Clockhouse Lane
Between: 08:00 hours on 318t July 207 Thorn Lane, ket bn o Bess | |unctions of Clockhiousa| 2017 or upon campletion of the works, Highfield Road
Glasad from junction | 4 T7:00 houes on 41l August 2097 6r pon . PRty el e e Lana and Highfiald whichevar I the sooner
Of Thorn Lana Heading | combletion of s wore: whichayar ls fha | Briscoe Road st e o Tobwi ol e Foad
ré%rli'l;ﬂl‘oa;g?i;ﬂﬁ% sooner Mygrove Road reiepaiis Ak KA Diversion 1
mE;wicklﬁ‘::a;' WRRTLEY Bvims Lo North Street
ol P Temporaty Closure of BETWEEN: A12
Enescutices -y Parkside Avenue 18th July 2017 to 21st July 2017 Pettits Lane
NOTICE OF APPLICATION FOR A iur('l:(i(!:;:w :;eﬁtn Lnasne OB:OC: o tfokr: e Ir(]m?ﬂ%”y o lijgpun g(ie‘;lei{sll?:ng
Mo I completion of the worl 5, hever [8 tha t
LONDON BOROUGH OF HAVERING PREMISES LICENSE UNDER SECTION and North Street ’ sooner Main Road
THE HAVERING (WAITING, LOADING AND STORPING 17 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003 Stﬁgﬂh:arsc{s \Qltay
RESTRICTIONS) (MAP BASED) {'AMENDMENT No. ®) APPLICANT: MK ADI. HAZIR wrading as Tropoa Dive:sior:'le 5
ORDER 201 PREMISES: 99 VICTORIA ROAD, ROMITIRD ST Many's L ane
THE HAVERING (PARKING PLACES) (MAP BASED) RMI2LY o Temptiety Sl of BETWEEN: Gorbats Toy Aoad
(AMENDMENT No. *) ORDER 201+ The proposed liceisaile activity is: To sell alcohol Ry Tye Rpad 24th July 2017 to 28th July 2017 Ockandon Aoad
Monday 1o Satnlay, 1tam - 11pm, Sunday |0am - Closed between its 9:30 h 15:30 h dail Diversion 2
PTO1034 9.'"“ . fpactonsiotStiMaryg co.mple‘l)iggsc:?the‘workosur:/higlh)évoéruig(t)ﬂe St Mary's Lane
" O o mpnes el heLoocon Borough 14 s o st s v | Lo Ocancon Pg Lo
ol Havering proposes to make tha ahovie-mentioned Crdars Under ke v e Ockendon Road
the Road ﬁgﬁicp&equlauun Act 1984 as amendad, Aty teqreseniatioon, by It ity o N - (Southbound)
2. The general effect of the Orders will be to:- be mule for S Temp:rary Clasure of EEN; Hall Lane
a) Introduce resident parking controls in lﬁ:’ﬂ;"ﬁd‘;‘;&'ﬂ;‘:ﬂﬁ;"“""‘ Protection Close‘nl:lolr:e?and = o 3:)5; July1201157‘:;<()) :‘s‘ Aug_:]slt oty Ingrebourne
i) Barhatay Road Vi) Wednesbury Groan €40 Towery Hall, Main Roen HAM1 junction of Hﬂ‘;'mﬂfﬂ W'ny 30 howrs (o 15:30 houts dally or upon Gardens
2 [ etinn of the works, wiiichever ia th
il) Harlegden Walk vil) Wednestiury Road Websile: www.havering gov.uk and Frgrt Lape oo, esoc:o)rr\eﬁr I ¢ = firentiCare
iii) St Meots Ron ;-:Eh r-cpmmﬂm!_}m: ML b pecilvall b Wiking by Diversion 1
. , iarly 2 Il | i
iv) St Ives Close aldc#:'hnal:“ .f'im.ﬁf.,“..rff n:::;"if. :e"l‘;l?::::“::rﬂ.uulin:::‘ Temparary Closure of BETWEEN: sﬂﬁ"é’n'éaﬁgad
v) Wednesbury Gardens nﬂ:,‘p:u\'-uu?mu Lhcensing Avt 2003, Mungo Park Road 2nd August 2017 to 4th August 2017 Diversion 2
3. Full datalls wrm avallable for Inspection togather with the deposit 110 offence 1o knowingly o recklesly mabe o filse  Closed betweenits | (630 hurs to 15:30 hours daily or pai L
toeuments for the ardsm referd to :ﬁ}nﬁ and ein b inspacted IR in comnection with an spplication ) Junctions of Wood Lana| complation of the worke. whishover thix Upvgg?gaiﬁﬂzm
> ' g ech i The fine fior whiich 0 persen b Fitile aip and South End Roacd sooner
for 8 perlod of 21 days sithar through wvew COUK immey covistion los he a3 Lo fiosief South End
of & in the Fublis Advics and Senice Centre, London Borough of - : - Road

Haverlng, Liberty Shopping Gontrs, Flamfar Bitwean Sam and dpm

on Mondays to Friday. Further infarmaticn mpy also ke obtai
waw havaringtraftweb. couk o sehemesEhaver g, gov ik

4. Ay nbjections o ottor fepresentations abowl either of tha
proposad Orders should be sant in writing 1o the Highways Traffic
ond Parking Group Muanages
Romford MY 288 until the expiration of a period of 21 diays frem
the date on which this Netice s Published. All abjsctiany st
specily the grounds on which they ars made.,

Datad this 14th day of July 2017

Publ 4 In Homford [

e Goods Vehicle

Operator’s Licenee
EXCEL HAULAGE SOLUTIONS LED of 30
River Road, Harking 1611 008 ix npplying to
change an existing livence w ol
To ailil an operating cenme o heep 4 proexly
vehicles aml 0 traiters ar Uit 5. Adbright
Indusrial Fstdte, Forey Lune, Raindiam /M 13
agLs

Havering Town Hall, Main Roar,

Baninl Fenwick, Director of Legal & Governance
Londan Borough of Havering, Town Hall, Manin Road,

Remford RM1 38D

rder on Friday 14 July 2017 Ownetd o

ocaiplers ol land  (inclading
ling=z) noar the Ing centrets) whi
belivve thit their e or enpoayinent of thal
laned would be uffected, shuull make wriien

TepT 1o the Trallic. Comuisgiones y
Hilleresd Hotse, 386 Horehilly Lime, Leeds,
5% 6NF, stating their seasons, within 21 ilays
ol this nntice, Representon must i il L

ItPays

tire e o anpy ulitheir remresenmtion 1 (e
appTreant ol the Sdiftess given i the T thie
g To ndua'tise iHive. & Guide o Making Representitions i
iwillahle frvm the Traffie Commissinmer’s oitice

Remember what it was
like to smile at worl?




Page 12



Havering

’\i" HBVE[i nq Application for a premises licence
T ' Licensing Act 2003

For help contact
licensin g@havering.gov.uk
Telephone: 01708 432777

*required information

Section 1 of 21

You can save the form at any time and resume it later. You do not need to be logged in when you resume.

System reference lﬁ)t Currently In Use

This is the unigue reference for this
application generated by the system.

Your reference TROPQJA

You can put what you want here to help you

Are you an agent acting on behalf of the applicant?

track applications if you make lots of them. it
is passed to the authority.

Put"no" if you are applying on your own
behalf or on behalf of a business you own or
work for,

Include country code.

C VYes & No
Applicant Details
* First name IADJL j
* Family name |HiZIRI l
* E-mail [ '
Main telephone number [ l
Other telephone number [ I

[0 Indicate here if you would prefer not to be contacted by telephone

Are you:

(& Applying as a business or organisation, including as a sole trader

(" Applying as an individual

Applicant Business

A sole trader is a business owned by one
person without any special legal structure.
Applying as an individual means you are
applying so you can be employed, or for
some other personal reason, such as
following a hobby.

Note: completing the Applicant Business
section is optional in this form.

If your business is registered, use its
registered name.

Put "none"” if you are not registered for VAT.

Is your business registered in  Yes ® No
the UK with Companies

House?

Is your business registered C  Yes # No
outside the UK?

Business name TROPOJA CAFE & BAR

VAT number I: :J IN.A

Legal status ISoIe Trader

]

Page 13



Continued from previous page...

Your position in the business @VNER

|

Home country lUnited Kingdom

The country where the headquarters of your
business is located.

Business Address

If you have one, this should be your official
address - that is an address required of you

Building number or name 99 - VICTORIA ROAD

j by law for receiving communications.

|

Street [RomFORD
District r
City or town EOMFORD

County or administrative area EEX

]
]
|

Postcode [Rm1 2LX

Country Mted Kingdom |
Section 2 of 21

PREMISES DETAILS

I/we, as named in section 1, apply for a premises licence under section 17 of the Licensing Act 2003 for the premises
described in section 2 below (the premises) and I/we are making this application to you as the relevant licensing authority
in accordance with section 12 of the Licensing Act 2003.

Premises Address
Are you able to provide a postal address, OS map
(& Address ("  0S map reference

Postal Address Of Premises

reference or description of the premises?

(" Description

Building number or name

o9

Street [VicToRIA ROAD
District |
City or town ROMFORD

County or administrative area |ESSEX

Postcode ﬁm 2LX J
Country mted Kingdom
Further Details

Telephone number l

Non-domestic rateable

value of premises (f) [1 2,500

L U L e

Page 14




Section 3 of 21

APPLICATION DETAILS

In what capacity are you applying for the premises licence?

An individual or individuals

A limited company / limited liability partnership
A partnership (other than limited liability)

An unincorporated association

Other (for example a statutory corporation)

A recognised club

A charity

The proprietor of an educational establishment

A health service bady

O 00000000 R

A person who is registered under part 2 of the Care Standards Act
2000 (c14) in respect of an independent hospital in Wales

A person who is registered under Chapter 2 of Part 1 of the Health and

Social Care Act 2008 in respect of the carrying on of a requlated

England

[ The chief officer of police of a police force in England and Wales

Confirm The Following

X I am carrying on or proposing to carry on a business which involves

the use of the premises for licensable activities
(] 1am making the application pursuant to a statutory function

] I am making the application pursuant to a function discharged by
virtue of Her Majesty’s prerogative

activity (within the meaning of that Part) in an independent hospital in

Section 4 of 21

INDIVIDUAL APPLICANT DETAILS

Applicant Name
Is the name the same as (or similar to) the details given in section one?

(& Yes C No
First name IA\T)IL j
Family name ’HAZIRI J

Is the applicant 18 years of age or older?

(& Yes " No

If “Yes” is selected you can re-use the details
from section one, or amend them as required.
Select “No” to enter a completely new set of
details.

Page 15



Continued from previous page...

Current Residential Address

s the address the same as (or similar to) the address given in section one? If "Yes” is selected you can re-use the details
from section one, or amend them as
 Yes ¢ No required. Select “No” to enter a completely

new set of details.

Building number or name
Street

District

County or administrative area

Postcode

| ULL

Country

l
[
[
City or town [
|
[
[

Applicant Contact Details
Are the contact details the same as (or similar to) those given in section one? If“Yes”is selected you can re-use the details
from section one, or amend them as
= Yes ¢ No required. Select "No” to enter a completely
new set of details.

E-mail
Telephone number

Other telephone number

* Date of birth

Documents that demonstrate entitlement to
workin the UK

I UL

* Nationality E

| Add another applicant —l

Section 5 of 21
OPERATING SCHEDULE

When do you want the

premises licence to start? I I AU
dd mm yyyy

If you wish the licence to be

valid only for a limited period, | / / I
dd mm yyyy

when do you want it to end

Provide a general description of the premises

For example the type of premises, its general situation and layout and any other information which could be relevant to the
licensing objectives. Where your application includes off-supplies of alcohol and you intend to provide a place for
consumption of these off- supplies you must include a description of where the place will be and its proximity to the
premises.

PREMISES IS APPROXIMATELY 12 METERES IN LENGTH AND 6 METER WIDE, INCLUDING KITCHEN/UTILITY AND TOILET J

. | Page 16




Continued from previous page...

AREAS 374 SQUARE METER TS GOING 1O BESERVING/TRADING AREA AND THERESTTS FOR CUSTOMERS SEATING AREA A
DIAGRAM IS ATTACHED

If 5,000 or more people are
expected to attend the

premises at any one time, !:

state the number expected to
attend

Section 6 of 21
PROVISION OF PLAYS

See guidance on regulated entertainment

Will you be providing plays?
 Yes & No

Section 7 of 21
PROVISION OF FILMS

See guidance on requlated entertainment

Will you be providing films?
C Yes & No

Section 8 of 21
PROVISION OF INDOOR SPORTING EVENTS

See guidance on regulated entertainment
Will you be providing indoor sporting events?
" Yes (& No

Section 9 of 21
PROVISION OF BOXING OR WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENTS

See guidance on regulated entertainment

Will you be providing boxing or wrestling entertainments?

" Yes (& No

Section 10 of 21
PROVISION OF LIVE MUSIC

See guidance on regulated entertainment
Will you be providing live music?

C Yes ® No

Section 11 of 21
PROVISION OF RECORDED MUSIC

See guidance on regulated entertainment

Will you be providing recorded music?

(® Yes " No
Standard Days And Timings

Page 17



Continued from previous page...

HCEEET . Give timings in 24 hour clock.
Start End (e.g., 16:00) and only give details for the days
TUESDAY
Start End
Start End
WEDNESDAY
Start End
Start End
THURSDAY
Start End |23:DB-__]
Start End
FRIDAY
Stat end
Start End
SATURDAY
Start End
Start End
SUNDAY
Start End |21:00 i
Start End [21:00 |
Will the playing of recorded music take place indoors or outdoors or both? Where taking place in a building or other
structure tick as appropriate. Indoors may
(¢ Indoors ¢~ Outdoors " Both include a tent.

State type of activity to be authorised, if not already stated, and give relevant further details, for example (but not
exclusively) whether or not music will be amplified or unamplified.

RECORDED MUSIC WILL BE PLAYED INDOORS ONLY AND WILL BE SLIGHTLY AMPLIFIED

State any seasonal variations for playing recorded music

For example (but not exclusively) where the activity will occur on additional days during the summaer months.

NONE

Page 18



Continued from previous page...

L ]

Non-standard timings. Where the premises will be used for the playing of recorded music at different times from those listed
in the column on the left, list below

For example (but not exclusively), where you wish the activity to go on longer on a particular day e.g. Christmas Eve.
N.A.

Section 12 of 21
PROVISION OF PERFORMANCES OF DANCE

See guidance on regulated entertainment

Will you be providing performances of dance?

" Yes & No

Section 13 of 21

PROVISION OF ANYTHING OF A SIMILAR DESCRIPTION TO LIVE MUSIC, RECORDED MUSIC OR PERFORMANCES OF
DANCE

See guidance on regulated entertainment

Will you be providing anything similar to live music, recorded music or
performances of dance?

C Yes (¢. No

Section 14 of 21
LATE NIGHT REFRESHMENT
Will you be providing late night refreshment?

(& Yes C No
Standard Days And Timings

MaNDAY Give timings in 24 hour clock.
Start End (e.g., 16:00) and only gi‘ve details forthz? days
B0 b
TUESDAY
Start End
Start End
WEDNESDAY
Start End
Start End
THURSDAY
Start End
Start End

Page 19



Continued from previous page...

FRIDAY

Stat tnd
SATURDAY

Start End
SUNDAY

Will the provision of late night refreshment take place indoors or outdoors of
both?

& Indoors ¢ Outdoors  Both Where taking place in a building or other
structure tick as appropriate. Indoors may
include a tent.

State type of activity to be authorised, if not already stated, and give relevant further details, for example (but not
exclusively) whether or not music will be amplified or unamplified.

REFERESMENTS WILL BE SERVED INDOORS ONLY AND MUSIC WILL BE SLIGHTLY AMPLIFIED

State any seasonal variations

For example (but not exclusively) where the activity will occur on additional days during the summer months.

N.A

Non-standard timings. Where the premises will be used for the supply of late night refreshments at different times from
those listed in the column on the left, list below

For example (but not exclusively), where you wish the activity to go on longer on a particular day e.g. Christmas Eve.

N.A

Section 15 of 21

SUPPLY OF ALCOHOL

Will you be selling or supplying alcohol?
¢ Yes " No

Page 20




Continued from previous page...

Standard Days And Timings

MONDAY

TUESDAY

WEDNESDAY

THURSDAY

FRIDAY

SATURDAY

SUNDAY

Will the sale of alcohol be for consumption:

" Onthe premises

Start

Start

Start

Start

Start

Start -

Start

Start

Start [10:00

Start

Start

Start

Start

A R A

Start

" Off the premises

State any seasonal variations

End [23:00

End [23:00

End
End

End

End

End

End

End |23:00

End [23:00

End [23:00

End [23:00

End |21:00
End |21.00

& Both

N[ N o[
olld ol|le =2 E=]
S||& S||a SANES)

Give timings in 24 hour clock.

(e.g., 16:00) and only give details for the days
of the week when you intend the premises
to be used for the activity.

If the sale of alcohol is for consumption on
the premises select on, if the sale of alcohaol
is for consumption away from the premises
select off. If the sale of alcohol is for
consumption on the premises and away
from the premises select both.

For example (but not exclusively) where the activity will occur on additional days during the summer months.

N.A

Page 21




Continued from previous page...

Non-standard timings. Where the premises will be used for the supply of alcohol at different times from those listed in the
column on the left, list below

For example (but not exclusively), where you wish the activity to goon longer on a particular day e.g. Christmas Eve.

N.A

State the name and details of the individual whom you wish to specify on the
ficence as premises supervisor

Name

First name [MR MOEEN

i
Family name WWAR j
Date of birth r— -

Enter the contact's address

Building number or name
Street
District

City or town

Postcode

Country

personal Licence number

[
[
{
|
County or administrative area |
|
|
(if known) [

J 0 LU

Issuing licensing authority l—
(if known) L

PROPOSED DESIGNATED PREMISES SUPERVISOR CONSENT

How will the consent form of the proposed designated premises supetrvisor
be supplied to the authority?

@ Electronically, by the proposed designated premises supervisor

¢ Asan attachment to this application

Reference number for consent J If the consent form is already submitted, ask

form (if known) == the proposed designated premises
supervisor for its 'system reference’ or 'your
reference’,

Page 22



Continued from previous page...
Section 16 of 21
ADULT ENTERTAINMENT

Highlight any adult entertainment or services, activities, or other entertainment or matters ancillary to the use of the
premises that may give rise to concern in respect of children

Give information about anything intended to occur at the premises or ancillary to the use of the premises which may give
rise to concern in respect of children, regardiess of whether you intend children to have access to the premises, for example
(but not exclusively) nudity or semi-nudity, films for restricted age groups etc gambling machines etc.

NONE

Section 17 of 21

HOURS PREMISES ARE OPEN TO THE PUBLIC
Standard Days And Timings

MONDAY o
Start End ?el.\;t;?:t;%?zlnndzgn?: ;;:vfek:dce:(t.ails forthg days
Y e
TUESDAY
Start End
WEDNESDAY
THURSDAY
Start End
FRIDAY
Start End
SATURDAY
SUNDAY
Start End
State any seasonal variations R
Page 23



Continued from previous page...

For example (but not exclusively) where the activity will occur on additional days during the summer months.

N.A

Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises to be open to the members and guests at different times from
those listed in the column on the left, list below

For example (but not exclusively), where you wish the activity to go on longer on a particular day e.g. Christmas Eve.

NO

Section 18 of 21

LICENSING OBJECTIVES

Describe the steps you intend to take to promote the four licensing objectives:

a) General - all four licensing objectives (b,c,d.e)

List here steps you will take to promote all four licensing objectives together.

PREMISES WILL BE INSTALLD BY CCTV AND RECORDINGS WILL BE AVAILABLE ON DEMAND BY THE AUTHORITIES UPTO 31
DAYS. CONSUMPTION OF ALCOHOL WILL BE ONLY AT PREMISES. FLOOR, CEILINGS AND WALLS WILL BE PROPERLY
CONCEALED TO REDUCE THE NOISE LEVELS. IDENTIFICATIONS WILL BE CHECKED TO AVOID UNDERAGE SALE. LICENSING
OBJECTIVE POSTERS AND WARNING WILL BE DISPLAYED AND BOOKS FOR INCIDENTS/REFUSAL WILL BE IN PLACED

b) The prevention of crime and disorder

CCTV WILL BE INSTALLED AND RECORDINGS WILL BE KEPT FOR 31 DAYS TO PREVENT CRIME AND DIS-ORDER. ALCOHOL
WILL BE SERVED AT CERTAIN LIMITS AND OVER LIMIT SALE WILL BE REFUSED. INCIDENT RECORD BOOK WILL BE
MAINTAINED AND ANY SUSPICIOUS ACTIVITY WILL BE REPORTED TO THE POLICE IMMIDIATELY

c) Public safety

NO GLASS BOTTLES WILL BE ALLOWED TO TAKE OFF THE PREMISES, THEY WILL BE REMOVED INSTANTLY AFTER
CONSUMPTION. INCIDENT RECORD BOOK WILL BE AVAILABLE ON DEMAND. PREMISES WILL BE PROTECED BY CCTV AND
ONLY RESPONSIBLE CUSTOMERS WILL BE ENTERTAINED

d) The prevention of public nuisance

MUSIC WILL BE PLAYED JUST INDOORS AND UPTO THE CERTAIN FREQUENCY LEVEL SO NEIGHBOURHOOD SHOULD NOT BE
DISTURBED. FLOOR, WALLS AND CEILINGS WILL BE CONCEALED WITH PROPER CONCEALING MATERIAL

e) The protection of children from harm

NO UNDERAGE SALE WILL BE AUTHORISED BY ANY MEMBER OF STAFF. PROPER IDENTIFICATION CHECKS WILL BE
MAINTAINED , A REFUSAL BOOK WILL BE IN PLACE AND MADE AVAILABLE FOR THE AUTHORITIES.

Page 24



Continued from previous page...

l

Section 19 of 21

NOTES ON DEMONSTRATING ENTITLEMENT TO WORK IN THE UK

Entitlement to work/immigration status for individual applicants and applications from partnerships which are not
limited liability partnerships:

A licence may not be held by an individual or an individual in a partnership who is resident in the UK who:

. does not have the right to live and work in the UK; or
° is subject to a condition preventing him or her from doing work relating to the carrying on of a licensable
activity.

Any premises licence issued in respect of an application made on or after 6 April 2017 will become invalid if the holder
ceases to be entitled to work in the UK.

Applicants must demonstrate that they have an entitlement to work in the UK and are not subject to a condition preventing
them from doing work relating to the carrying on of a licensable activity. They do this by praviding with this application
copies or scanned coples of the following documents (which do not need to be certified).
Documents which demonstrate entitlement to work in the UK

3 An expired or current passport showing the holder, or a person named in the passport as the child of the

holder, is A British citizen or a citizen of the UK and Colonies having the right of abode in the UK [please see
note below about which sections of the passport to copy].

o An expired or current passport or national identity card showing the holder, or a person named in the passport
as the child of the holder, is a national of a European Economic Area country or Switzerland.

o A Registration Certificate or document certifying permanent residence issued by the Home Office to a national
of a European Economic Area country or Switzerland.

. A Permanent Residence Card issued by the Home Office to the family member of a national of a European
Economic Area country or Switzerland.

° A current Biometric Immigration Document (Biometric Residence Permit) issued by the Home Office to the

holder indicating that the person named is allowed to stay indefinitely in the UK, or has no time limit on their
stay in the UK.

. A current passport endorsed to show that the holder is exempt from immigration control, is allowed to stay
indefinitely in the UK, has the right of abode in the UK, or has no time limit on their stay in the UK.
. A current Immigration Status Document issued by the Home Office to the holder with an endorsement

indicating that the named person is allowed to stay indefinitely in the UK or has no time limit on their stayin
the UK, when produced in combination with an official document giving the person’s permanent National
Insurance number and their name issued by a Government agency or a previous employer.

o A full birth or adoption certificate issued in the UK which includes the name(s) of at least one of the holder’s
parents or adoptive parents, when produced in combination with an official document giving the person’s
permanent National Insurance number and their name issued by a Government agency or a previous employer.

° A birth or adoption certificate issued in the Channel Islands, the Isle of Man or Ireland when produced in
combination with an official document giving the person'’s permanent National Insurance number and their
name issued by a Government agency or a previous employer.

° A certificate of registration or naturalisation as a British citizen, when produced in combination with an
official document giving the person’s permanent National Insurance number and their name issued by a
Government agency or a previous employer.

o A current passport endorsed to show that the holder is allowed to stay in the UK and is currently allowed to
work and is not subject to a condition preventing the holder from doing work relating to the carrying on of a
licensable activity,

Page 25




Continued from previous page...

. A current Biometric Immigration Document (Biometric Residence Permit) issued by the Home Office to the
holder which indicates that the named person can currently stay in the UK and is allowed to work relation to
the carrying on of a licensable activity.

. A current Residence Card issued by the Home Office to a person who isnot a national of a European Economic
Area state or Switzerland but who is a family member of such a national or who has derivative rights or
residence.

° A current Immigration Status Document containing a photograph issued by the Home Office to the holder

with an endorsement indicating that the named person may stay in the UK, and is allowed to work and is not
subject to a condition preventing the holder from doing work relating to the carrying on of a licensable activity
when produced in combination with an official document giving the person’s permanent National Insurance
number and their name issued by a Government agency or a previous employer.

. A Certificate of Application, less than 6 months old, issued by the Home Office under regulation 17(3) or 18A
(2) of the Immigration (European Economic Area) Regulations 2006, to a person who is nota national of a
European Economic Area state or switzerland but who is a family member of such a national or who has
derivative rights of residence.

° Reasonable evidence that the person has an outstanding application to vary their permission to be in the UK
with the Home Office such as the Home Office acknowledgement letter or proof of postage evidence, or
reasonable evidence that the person has an appeal or administrative review pending on an immigration
decision, such as an appeal or administrative review reference number.

° Reasonable evidence that a person who is not a national of a European Economic Area state or Switzerland but
who is a family member of such a national or who has derivative rights of residence in exercising treaty rights in
the UK including:-

° evidence of the applicant’s own identity — such as a passport,
e evidence of their relationship with the European Economic Area family member - e.g. a matriage
certificate, civil partnership certificate or birth certificate, and
o evidence that the European Economic Area national has a right of permanent residence in the UK or is one
of the following if they have been in the UK for more than 3 months:
0] working e.g. employment contract, wage slips, letter from the employer,
(i) self-employed e.g. contracts, invoices, or audited accounts with a bank,
(iii) studying e.g. letter from the school, college or university and evidence of sufficient funds; or
(iv) self-sufficient e.g. bank statements.
Family members of European Economic Area hationals who are studying or financially independent must also provide
evidence that the European Economic Area national and any family members hold comprehensive sickness insurance in the
UK. This can include a private medical insurance policy, an EHIC card or an 51, S2 or S3 form.
Original documents must not be sent to licensing authorities. If the document copied is a passpott, a copy of the
following pages should be provided:-
(i) any page containing the holder’s personal details including nationality;
(i) any page containing the holder’s photograph;
(iii) any page containing the holder's signature;
(iv) any page containing the date of explry; and
(v) any page containing information indicating the holder has permission to enter or remain in the UK and is permitted to

work.

If the document is not a passport, a copy of the whole document should be provided.

Your right to work will be checked as part of your licensing application and this could involve us checking your immigration
status with the Home Office. We may otherwise share information with the Home Office. Your licence application will not be
determined until you have complied with this guidance.

Section 20 of 21
NOTES ON REGULATED ENTERTAINMENT

Page 26




Continued from previous page...

In terms of specific regulated entertainments please note that:

Plays: no licence is required for performances between 08:00 and 23.00 on any day, provided that the audience
does not exceed 500.

Films: no licence is required for ‘not-for-profit’ film exhibition held in community premises between 08.00 and
23.00 on any day provided that the audience does not exceed 500 and the organiser (a) gets consent to the
screening from a person who is responsible for the premises; and (b) ensures that each such screening abides
by age classification ratings.

Indoor sporting events: no licence is required for performances between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, provided
that the audience does not exceed 1000,

Boxing or Wrestling Entertainment: no licence is required for a contest, exhibition or display of Greco-Roman
wrestling, or freestyle wrestling between 08,00 and 23.00 on any day, provided that the audience does not
exceed 1000. Combined fighting sports — defined as a contest, exhibition or display which combines boxing or
wrestling with one or more martial arts — are licensable as a boxing or wrestling entertainment rather than an
indoor sporting event.

Live music: no licence permission is required for:
a performance of unamplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, on any premises.

a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day on premises authorised to sell
alcohol for consumption on those premises, provided that the audience does not exceed 500.

a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, in a workplace that is not
licensed to sell alcohol on those premises, provided that the audience does not exceed 500.

a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, in a church hall, village hall,
community hall, or other similar community premises, that is not licensed by a premises licence to sell
alcohol, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and (b} the organiser gets consent for the
performance from a person who is responsible for the premises.

a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, at the non-residential premises
of (i) a local authority, or (ii) a school, or (jii) a hospital, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500,
and (b) the organiser gets consent for the performance on the relevant premises from: (i) the local
authority concerned, or (ii) the school or (jii) the health care provider for the hospital.

Recorded Music: no licence permission is required for:

any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day on premises authorised to sell alcohol
for consumption on those premises, provided that the audience does not exceed 500.

any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, in a church hall, village hall,
community hall, or other similar community premises, that is not licensed by a premises licence to sell
alcohol, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and (b) the organiser gets consent for the
performance from a person who is responsible for the premises.

any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, at the non-residential premises of (i) a
local authority, or (i} a school, or (iii) a hospital, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and (b)
the organiser gets consent for the performance on the relevant premises from: (i) the local authority
concerned, or (i) the school proprietor or (ijii) the health care provider for the hospital.

Page 27



Continued from previous page...

o Dance: no licence is required for performances between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, provided that the
audience does not exceed 500. However, a performance which amounts to adult entertainment remains
licensable.

) Cross activity exemptions: no licence is required between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, with no limit on
audience size for:

o] any entertainment taking place on the premises of the local authority where the entertainment is provided
by or on behalf of the local authority;

e} any entertainment taking place on the hospital premises of the health care provider where the
entertainment is provided by or on behalf of the health care provider;

o} any entertainment taking place on the premises of the school where the entertainment is provided by or
on behalf of the school proprietor; and

o] any entertainment (excluding films and a boxing or wrestling entertainment) taking place at a travelling
circus, provided that (a) it takes place within a moveable structure that accommodates the audience, and
(b) that the travelling circus has not been located on the same site for more than 28 consecutive days.

Section 21 of 21

PAYMENT DETAILS

This fee must be paid to the authority. If you complete the application online, you must pay it by debit or credit card.

Premises Licence Fees are determined by the non domestic rateable value of the premises.

To find out a premises non domestice rateable value go to the Valuation Office Agency site at http://www.voa.gov.uk/
business_rates/index.htm

Band A - No RV to £4300 - £100

Band B - £4301 to £33000 - £190.00

Band C - £33001 to £87000 - £315.00

Band D - £87001 to £125000 - £450.00%

Band E - £125001 and over - £635.00%

*If the premises rateable value is in Bands D or E and the premises is primarily used for the consumption of alcohol on the
premises then you are requried to pay a higher fee.

Band D - £87001 to £125000 - £900.00

Band E - £125001 and over - £1,905.00

There is an exemption from the payment of fees in relation to the provision of regulated entertainment at church halls,
chapel halls, or premises of a similar nature, village halls, parish or community halls, or other premises of a similar nature.
The costs associated with these licences will be met by Central Government. If, however, the licence also authorises the use
of the premises for the supply of alcohol or the provision of late night refreshment, a fee will be required,

Schools and sixth form colleges are exempt from the fees associated with the authorisation of regulated entertainment
where the entertainment is provided by and at the school or college and for the purposes of the school or college.

If you operate a large event you are subject to ADDITIONAL fees based upon the number of attendance at any one time.
Capacity 5000 to 9999 - £1,000.00

Capacity 10000 to 14999 - £2,000.00

Capacity 15000 to 19999 - £4,000.00

Capacity 20000 to 29999 - £8,000.00

Capacity 30000 to 39999 - £16,000.00

Capacity 40000 to 49999 - £24,000.00

Capacity 50000 to 59999 - £32,000.00

Capacity 60000 to 69999 - £40,000.00

Capacity 70000 to 79999 - £48,000.00

Capacity 80000 to 89999 - £56,000.00

Capacity 90000 and over £64,000.00

* Fee amount (£) 190.00 |

ATTACHMENTS

AUTHORITY POSTAL ADDRESS

Page 28




Continued from previous page...

Address

Building number or name

L
Street ﬁ
L

District

City or town I

_J._J__I_IJ

County or administrative area I

Postcode ] j
Country @n‘ted Kingdom j

DECLARATION

« Vweunderstand it is an offence, liable on conviction to a fine up to level 5 on the standard scale, under Section 158 of the
Licensing Act 2003, to make a false statement in or in connection with this application.

d Ticking this box indicates you have read and understood the above declaration

This section should be completed by the applicant, unless you answered "Yes" to the question "Are you an agent acting on
behalf of the applicant?”

* Full name F j

* Capacity L I

Date (dd/mm/yyyy)

L
* Full name I: I
L

* Capacity

Date (dd/mm/yyyy)

-

L Remove this signatory 7

L Add another signatory 7

Once you're finished you need to do the following:

1. Save this form to your computer by clicking file/save as...

2.Go back to _!J_l.t_'ps_:_a_’_.f'www‘g_czv‘thiaamy—.b_r;a!-_.ig_er_a_cg_i_rmﬂ:meSﬂ:_enc_eiaa_\-te_rirmf.amw-T to upload this file and continue
with your application,

Don't forget to make sure you have all your supporting documentation to hand.

Page 29




Continued from previous page...

| IT IS AN OFFENCE LIABLE TO SUMMARY CONVICTION TO A FINE OF ANY AMOUNT UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE
LICENSING ACT 2003, TO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS APPLICATION

IT1S AN OFFENCE UNDER SECTION 24B OF THE IMMIGRATION ACT 1971 FOR A PERSON TO WORK WHEN THEY
KNOW, OR HAVE REASONABLE CAUSE TO BELIEVE, THAT THEY ARE DISQUALIFIED FROM DOING SO BY REASON OF
THEIR IMMIGRATION STATUS. THOSE WHO EMPLOY AN ADULT WITHOUT LEAVE OR WHO IS SUBJECT TO
CONDITIONS AS TO EMPLOYMENT WILL BE LIABLETO A CIVIL PENALTY UNDER SECTION 15 OF THE IMMIGRATION,
ASYLUM AND NATIONALITY ACT 2006 AND PURSUANT TO SECTION 21 OF THE SAME ACT, WILL BE COMMITTING AN
OFFENCE WHERE THEY DO SO IN THE KNOWLEDGE, OR WITH REASONABLE CAUSE TO BELIEVE, THAT THE EMPLOYEE

IS DISQUALIFIED

Page 30




.
hil AN

£E]

ALE A
|

T,

/

& .
e

L}lm

b

o AL17/477

» L L

L2712 ’

(22

Page 31



Page 32



9~

d.! — T 1 -
i

,ﬂ _7 W// 7 2m @?»\

N TN !
Ba 1 I

‘ L CTWER,
o
L
Fin
¥ l =

e T —

by

w

Page 33




Page 34



Taiwo Adeoye

From: GRAHAM HOPKINS <gtlicensingconsultants@googlemail com>

Sent: 29 July 2017 12:36

To: Kasey Conway

Cc: Chima Umunnakwe; Sasha Taylor; Paul Jones; belinda.goodwin@met pnn.police.uk; Oisin.Daly@met,pnn.police.uk; Police licensing
Subject: Tropoja / Amended Application & Operating Schedule

Hi Kasey.

Document we sent to Licensing re Tropoja is pasted below and also reattached.
Also cc'd to the other parties it was sent to in case they could not open it either,

Kind regards,

Graham Hopkins
GT Licensing Consultants 07810 826778

Tropoja, 99 Victoria Road, Romford, Essex, RM1 2LX // Amended Application.

1) THE REQUESTS FOR RECORDED MUSIC & LATE NIGHT REFRESHMENT ARE WITHDRAWN FROM THE APPLICATION. MUSIC WILL ONLY BE PLAYED AT A BACKGROUND
LEVEL.

2) THE OPERATING SCHEDULE IS AMENDED AS BELOW:

A) General

WE WILL OPERATE OUR BUSINESS IN A RESPONSIBLE MANNER AND ACTIVELY PROMOTE THE LICENSING OBJECTIVES AT ALL TIMES. THE PREMISES WILL OPERATE WITH
‘CAFE BAR" TYPE CONDITIONS ALLOWING CUSTOMERS TO BUY ALCOHOL WITHOUT A REQUIREMENT TO HAVE A MEAL.

Romford Town Centre CIZ

TROPOJA IS LOCATED OUTSIDE ROMFORD RING TOAD AND IS THEREFORE NOT LOCATED WITHIN THE TOWN CENTRE CIZ

B) Prevention of Crime & Disorder

1) CCTV COVERING THE INTERIOR & EXTERIOR OF THE SHOP WILL BE INSTALLED AND SHALL BE KEPT OPERATIONAL AT ALL TIMES THE PREMISES ARE OPEN TO THE
PUBLIC. IT SHALL BE CAPABLE OF TAKING A HEAD & SHOULDERS SHOT OF PERSONS ENTERING THE PREMISES, BE CAPABLE OF STORING IMAGES FOR A MININIUM OF 31
DAYS AND A MEMBER OF STAFF CAPABLE OF DOWNLOADING IMAGES FOR THE POLICE OR AUTHORISED COUNCIL OFFICERS SHALL BE ON DUTY AT ALL TIMES THE
PREMISES ARE OPEN.

2) ALL CUSTOMERS CONSUMING ALCOHOL ON THE PREMISES SHALL BE SEATED AT A TABLE INSIDE THE RESTAURANT, WITH ALL SERVICE OF ALCOHOL BY STAFF ONLY
AND NO VERTICAL DRINKING PERMITTED.

3) NOTICES WILL BE PROMINENTLY DISPLAYED BY THE ENTRY/ EXIT DOOR AND POINT OF SALE (AS APPROPRIATE) ADVISING CUSTOMERS:

A) THAT CCTV & CHALLENGE 25 ARE IN OPERATION;

B) ADVISING CUSTOMERS OF THE PROVISIONS OF THE LICENSING ACT REGARDING UNDERAGE & PROXY SALES;
C) OF THE PERMITTED HOURS FOR THE SALE OF ALCOHOL & THE OPENING TIMES OF THE PREMISES;

D) TO RESPECT RESIDENTS & LEAVE QUIETLY AND NOT TO LOITER QUTSIDE THE SHOP;

E) TO DISPOSE OF LITTER LEGALLY;

F) NOT TO REMOVE GLASSES OR OPEN CONTAINERS OF ALCOHOL FROM THE PREMISES;

G) NOT TO DRINK ALCOHOL IN THE STREET AT ANY TIME.

4) AN INCIDENT BOOK SHALL BE KEPT AT THE PREMISES AND MADE AVAILABLE TO THE POLICE OR AUTHORISED OFFICERS WHICH WILL RECORD THE FOLLOWING
A) ALL CRIMES REPORTED AT THE SHOP;

B) ALL EJECTIONS OF CUSTOMERS;

C) ANY COMPLAINTS RECEIVED;

D) ANY INCIDENTS OF DISORDER AND VIOLENCE;

E) ANY FAULTS IN OR WORK UNDERTAKEN ON THE CCTV SYSTEM;

F) ANY REFUSAL IN THE SALE OF ALCOHOL PRODUCTS TO INCLUDE DATE, TIME, PRODUCT INVOLVED, BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF CUSTOMER AND INITIALS OF STAFF MEMBER
REFUSING THE SALE;

G) ANY VISIT BY A RELEVANT AUTHORITY OR EMERGENCY SERVICE;

H) CAD NUMBERS WHERE POLICE ARE CALLED

5) ALL STAFF WILL BE TRAINED FOR THEIR ROLE AND THE LICENSING ACT ON INDUCTION AND BE GIVEN REFRESHER TRAINING AT REGULAR INTERVALS OF SIX MONTHS
THEREAFTER. TRAINING WILL INCLUDE IDENTIFYING PERSONS UNDER 25, MAKING A CHALLENGE, ACCEPTABLE PROOF OF AGE, MAKING AND RECORDING A REFUSAL,
PROXY SALES, PREVENTING SALES TO DRUNKEN PERSONS, AVOIDING CONFLICT, RESPONSIBLE ALCOHOL RETAILING & SAFEGUARDING CHILDREN.

6) WRITTEN TRAINING RECORDS WILL BE KEPT FOR ALL STAFF MEMBERS AND MADE AVAILABLE TO POLICE OR AUTHORISED OFFICERS ON REQUEST

7) A MINIMUM OF 2 MEMBERS OF STAFF SHALL BE ON DUTY IN THE PREMISES AFTER 19,00
8) NO OPEN BOTTLES OR CANS OR GLASSES OF ALCOHOL SHALL BE REMOVED FROM THE RESTAURANT OR OUTSIDE TABLES & CHAIRS AT ANY TIME.

9) NO ALCOHOL SOLD FOR CONSUMPTION OFF THE PREMISES SHALL BE SUPPLIED IN OPEN CONTAINERS

10) NO BEERS, LAGERS OR CIDERS ABOVE 6,0% ABV SHALL BE SOLD FOR CONSUMPTION OFF THE PREMISES

11) ALL ALCOHOL MUST BE DISPLAYED BEHIND THE COUNTER AND COVERED BY CCTV AT ALL TIMES. ALL ALCOHOL NOT ON DISPLAY WILL BE STORED IN A LOCKABLE
STORE ROOM,

C) Public Safety

A FIRE RISK ASSESSMENT & EMERGENCY PLAN WILL BE PREPARED AND REGULARLY REVIEWED. ALL STAFF WILL BE GIVEN APPROPRIATE FIRE SAFETY TRAINING
D) Prevention of Public Nuisance

1) RELEVANT NOTICES WILL BE PROMINENTLY DISPLAYED BY THE ENTRY / EXIT DOOR & POINT OF SALE (AS APPROPRIATE). SEE BOX B CONDITION 3 FOR FULL
INFORMATION,

2) THE SHOP FRONT WILL BE KEPT TIDY AT ALL TIMES AND SHALL BE SWEPT AT CLOSE
3) NO DELIVERIES WILL BE RECEIVED OR RUBBISH REMOVED BETWEEN 20.00 AND 08.00

4) A PHONE NUMBER FOR THE SHOP SHALL BE DISPLAYED IN THE PREMISES WINDOW FOR RESIDENTS TO CALL WITH ANY CONCERNS, FULL DETAILS OF ANY COMPLAINTS
& THE ACTION TAKEN WILL BE RECORDED IN THE INCIDENT BOOK
E) Protection of Children From Harm

1) RELEVANT NOTICES WILL BE PROMINENTLY DISPLAYED BY THE ENTRY / EXIT DOOR & POINT OF SALE (AS APPROPRIATE) SEE BOX B CONDITION 3 FOR FULL
INFORMATION

2) NO UNACCOMPANIED CHILDREN OR YOUNG PERSONS UNDER 18 SHALL BE PERMITTED ON THE PREMISES AFTER 18.00

3) ALL STAFF WILL BE TRAINED FOR THEIR ROLE AND IN THE RELEVANT PROVISIONS OF THE LICENSING ACT ON INDUCTION AND BE GIVEN REFRESHER TRAINING AT
REGULAR INTERVALS OF SIX MONTHS THEREAFTER. SEE BOX B CONDITION 5 FOR FULL INFORMATION

Page 35



Page 36



From: Moeen Anwar (mailto: I

Sent: 04 July 2017 19:10

To: Paul Jones

Subject: Re: Premises licence application - 99 Victoria Road Romford

Dear Sir

Thank you very much for your mail and your concern about the premises. | would
like to clarify that:

e

I'am acting on behalf of Mr Haziri as being a business partner in the past as
well as he is known to me since 2007. Mr Haziri has a substntial experience of

running Alcohol businesses like pubs in Redbridge and Barking Boroughs
since 2002,

. The premises that | have made an application for belongs to Mr Haziri and his

business partner, they both are the Lease Holders and they own the Car
Wash at the rear

I will be the premises supervisor once the business will be opened for the
public until Mr Haziri or his partner go through the Licensing exams and get
their own Licences

I also confirm here that the premises is not open for the public yet because
there are few issues with the renovation as well as no sinage has been
finalised. As long as your contact has been concerened, Mr Haziri stated that
there is no sale has been made to any member of public. The place is solely
in use of Car Wash staff and Mr Haziri's family members, i,e., his brothers,
cousins and nephews. Sometimes they have a drink there and have a game
of pool behind the close doors. He has also stated that he has celeberated his
son's birthday recently at the premises and the leftover drinks are in the fridge
and at the premises.

. | also want to state here that my duty starts once the Premises Licence will be

issued and the place will be open for the public, if anything is happening there
before the Licence is been issued | should not be held responsible for. | want
to assure you that once the business start trading and the Licence will be
issued all the Licensing objectives will be implemented and all necessary
actions will be taken to run this premises under the conditions of the Licence.
Further more, | have advised Mr Haziri to remove all the Alcohol from the
premises and stop using the premises for any kind of Alcoholic activities even
for the personal consumption.

I hope this will resolve the issues and concern stated in your email. If all is good and
satisfying | will call in the morning and pay the fee,

Kind regards

Mr Moeen Anwar

Page 37



Page 38



4ng™d LONDO N BOROUGH

Licensing Act 2003 — responsible authority representation

This representation is made by a responsible authority for the London Borough of
Havering concerning a premises licence application for the premises as detailed below.

Applicant: Adil Haziri

Premises: Tropoja Café & Bar 99 Victoria Road Romford RM1 2LX
Name: Paul Jones

Organisation: London Borough of Havering Licensing Authority
Address: c/o Town Hall Main Road Romford RM1 3BD

Email: paul.jones@havering.gov.uk

Telephone no.: 01708 432692

Objection summary: The licensing authority has concerns that there is a likelihood that
these premises will be inclined to operate in a fashion contrary to the promotion of the
licensing objectives. This concern is based upon an allegation received from a member of
the public, a follow-up site inspection made by a member of the licensing authority and an
assessment of the application as submitted.

Policy considerations W
Licensing Policy 1

In considering applications for new licences, variations to existing licences and licence
reviews the Licensing Authority will take the matters listed below into account:

* whether the premises is located in an area of cumulative impact;

* the type of premises and their cumulative impact on the area and the mix of
premises in the area;

the location of the premises and the character of the area:

the views of the responsible authorities;

the views of other persons:

past compliance history of current management;

the proposed hours of operation;

the type and number of customers likely to attend the premises:

whether the applicant is able to demonstrate commitment to a high standard of

management, for example through active participation in the Safe and Sound
meetings and Pubwatch.

Licensing Policy 5

The Licensing Authority is concerned regarding the adverse impact on the licensing
objectives arising from the increasing numbers of shops selling alcohol for consumption off
the premises. The Licensing Authority will consider restricting the number of premises and

the licensing hours to 23:00 in locations where longer hours undermine the licensing
Lobjectives.

Page 39



-

Licensing Policy 6

The Licensing Authority considers that, in the interests of clarity and transparency,
applicants should normally have in place the relevant planning consent for the intended
use and hours of operation or otherwise have lawful planning status before making an
application for a premises licence. Every application, however, will be considered on its
merits on a case by case basis.

Licensing Policy 8

When assessing the applicant’s or licensee’s ability to demonstrate a commitment to high
standards of management the Licensing Authority will take into account whether the
applicant or licensee:

Can demonstrate comprehensive knowledge of best practice

Has sought advice from the responsible authorities

Has implemented any advice that has been given by the responsible authorities

Is able to understand verbal and written advice and legal requirements

Can demonstrate knowledge of the licensing objectives, relevant parts of the
licensing policy and their responsibilities under the Licensing Act 2003

Is able to run their business lawfully and in accordance with good business
practices

e |s able to demonstrate a track record of compliance with legal requirements

Where there is a history of non-compliance associated with the premises applicants will
need to establish evidence of improvement in management standards and procedures.

Licensing Policy 10

The Licensing Authority expects licensees to operate to the highest standards of
management and to cooperate with responsible authorities to prevent:

e The sale of alcohol to underage children
e Drunkenness on premises
e lrresponsible drinks promotions

Where the Licensing Authority receives representations from responsible authorities that
the management of a premises is supporting such activities, or that there is strong
evidence linking patrons with alcohol related crime, disorder or anti-social behaviour the
Licensing Authority will consider reviewing the licences to impose additional restrictions
and controls to prevent or minimise the impact.

Licensing Policy 14

The Licensing Authority is committed to protecting the amenity of residents and
businesses in the vicinity of licenced premises, particularly when late hours have been
sought. Where relevant representations are received the Licensing Authority will impose
appropriate restrictions or controls on the licence to support the prevention of undue noise
disturbance from licensed premises.

Licensing Policy 16

The Licensing Authority recognises that where gardens and tables and chairs are provided
for smoking, eating and drinking outside users can cause nuisance. Where smoking,
eating and drinking take place outside the Licensing Authority expects applicants to
provide comprehensive details in their operating schedule on:

Page 40
. -




- .
e The location of outside areas to be available for use

e How the outside areas will be managed to prevent noise, smell and pavement
obstructions.

Where the Licensing Authority receives representations or a review application regarding
the use of an outside area it will impose restrictions or conditions that are appropriate for
preventing a public nuisance.

Licensing Policy 20

The Licensing Authority is committed to tackling the illegal sale of alcohol to children,
including proxy sales when adults buy alcohol for children. Premises within 400 metres of
schools or colleges should consider licence conditions to control the products offered for
sale and on display in windows. It expects licensees to implement measures to Challenge
25 standard to reduce the likelihood of underage sales from their premises and will take
appropriate action, including review of licences, where sales persist.

Representation

This application was submitted to Havering's Licensing Authority by e-mail on 3" July
2017. The e-mail made no reference to the application fee. The application was therefore
immediately distinctive as an application is not complete until such time that the application
fee has been paid. This submission appeared to overlook the fee requirement.

On 4™ July 2017 | received a contact from a concerned member of the public to the effect
that this premises was already operating as a functioning bar. | attended the premises
later the same day. While there were at that time no occupants in the bar, the premises
appeared to all intents and purposes to be able to operate as a fully functioning bar, i.e.
the premises door was open permitting public access, the premises was fully decorated
and furnished to permit public access, tables and chairs were located within the premises,
a pool table was positioned in the premises, the applicant was on site and there was a bar
which contained a varied selection of alcohol.

While the application identifies these premises as a ‘café & bar' there appeared little
evidence of the availability of food. The premises plans indicate that there is no kitchen on
site where food appropriate to a café operation might be prepared. The premises
appeared to comprise what one might consider to be a bar in which the main activity is the
consumption of alcohol,

The attached witness statement details the site inspection undertaken on 4™ July 2017.
The application fee was paid on 5% July 2017 at which point the application commenced.

The applicant nominally identified on the application form is Mr Adil Haziri; however, what
might appear less than clear is who actually operates the business. The application was
sent as an e-mail attachment from an e-mail address belonging to Mr Moeen Anwar. The
telephone/e-mail contact details provided on the application form, ostensibly as those of
Mr Haziri, are actually those of Mr Anwar. Mr Anwar paid the application fee. Mr Anwar
provided an explanation for the premises’ apparent use further to the licensing authority’s
site visit. Mr Anwar made contact with the licensing authority further to the application’s
advertising requirements. The application form indicates that Mr Anwar is to be the site’s
designated premises supervisor (DPS). A DPS is effectively a subordinate role to the
premises licence holder who it is intended will be Mr Haziri, yet it appears that every
aspect of this application is initiated by Mr Anwar.

Contd,

Page 41




Subsequent to the 4™ July 2017 site inspection contact was made with the applicant via
the contact details provided on the application form. Clarification was sought further to the
premises’ apparent state of operation as a functioning bar. Mr Anwar provided a response
which is attached to this representation. Mr Anwar’s response indicates that the premises
has been used for Mr Haziri’s car wash staff as well as Mr Haziri's brothers, cousins and
nephews to sometimes have a drink there and have a game of pool behind closed doors.
The fridge full of beer was explained by Mr Anwar as the drinks left-over from Mr Haziri's
son’s birthday celebrations.

Whether this explanation is credible remains unclear. As Mr Anwar's e-mail makes clear,
Mr Haziri has “substantial experience of running alcohol businesses like pubs in Redbridge
and Barking since 2002”. This being the case, Mr Haziri should be well aware of the
requirements of the Licensing Act 2003 further to alcohol possession, display and supply
given his extensive 15 years’ experience of running alcohol businesses which appears to
have commenced three years before the Licensing Act 2003 came into force. We might
reasonably query this assertion as, by Mr Anwar's admission, Mr Haziri has yet to obtain a
personal licence in the twelve years the Act has been in force while Mr Haziri’s biometric
residence permit, a copy of which was supplied with the premises licence application,
suggests he has had the right to remain and work in the UK since May 2016.

What might seem clear, however, is that even before the premises licence application had
been made the licensing authority had received a complaint against the premises alleging
illegal activity was taking place. The site visit made by the licensing authority found the
unprompted allegation made by a member of the public to be credible.

With regard to licensing policy 6 the licensing authority recognises that licensing and
planning are discrete areas of law. Havering’s licensing policy makes reference, however,
to an applicant's legal obligations under planning law. It indicates that “in the interests of
clarity and transparency, applicants should normally have in place the relevant planning
consent for the intended use and hours of operation or otherwise have lawful planning
status before making an application for a premises licence.” The licensing authority
understands that 99 Victoria Road Romford is currently permitted A2 planning usage
which would permit the site to be used further to financial and professional services, e.g.
banks, building societies, estate agencies, employment agencies, betting offices and the
like, as governed by planning permission P1653.05. This business defines itself as a
café/bar so we might reasonably expect that the site should have A4 usage, i.e. public
houses, wine bars or other drinking establishments (but not night clubs).

Section 18 of the application form proposes the steps the applicant intends to take to
promote the licensing objectives. The proposals contained in section 18 will be required to
translate into licence conditions if the application is granted. The steps identified appear
less than robust given the premises’ intended operation as a bar, i.e. alcohol on-
consumption may be permitted without the requirement that alcohol accompanies a table
meal.

There is an undertaking that the consumption of alcohol will be “only at the premises” and
that “no glass bottles will be allowed to be taken off the premises” yet section 15 further to
alcohol supplies makes clear that alcohol sales are to be permitted for both on and off
consumption. It is not clear how off sales may be permitted given these two proposed
restrictions.

There is an undertaking that “floors, ceilings and walls will be properly concealed to reduce
noise levels”. Itis not clear what is meant by this.

There is an undertaking that “music will be played up to a certain frequency level’. The
‘frequency level’ is not clarified and it is not clear what is meant by this.

There is an undertaking that “alcohol will be served at certain limits and over limit sales will
be refused”. It is not clear what is meant by this.

Contd.
Page 42




There is an undertaking that ‘proper identification checks will be maintained” although
there is no clarification of what the applicant interprets a proper identification check to be,
e.g. what will prompt identification checks occurring, which identification documents will be
deemed valid, what will be the result when challenged individuals are unable to provide
acceptable identification etc.

Other than the aforementioned ‘proper identification checks' there is no mention of any
age verification policy the applicant may have in place as required by the Act's mandatory
conditions.

Finally, the premises plans submitted with the application contain no evidence of any
firefighting equipment being present on site. Naturally concerns further to public safety are
raised when premises which permit members of the public to consume alcohol on site
have no firefighting equipment.

Conclusion

This application causes the licensing authority concern for the reasons detailed above. An
allegation made by a member of the public claimed the premises had already begun
operating as a bar before a licence was in force at the site to permit such activity. A site
visit found that the premises was, to all intents and purposes, capable of operating in the
manner alleged by the complainant (although it should be made clear that unauthorised
alcohol sales have not been witnessed by the licensing authority). The explanation for this
set of circumstances provided by the applicant's representative, i.e. that the alcohol
located in a fridge behind the bar was for the owner's personal consumption, might appear
less than convincing.

It is not entirely clear who is running the business which is of great concern given the
premises’ intended use as a de facto pub. The applicant and eventual premises licence
holder is only able to be contacted via a letter to his home address or a visit in person
while telephone and e-mail contact may be made with the DPS only.

The operating schedule as submitted appears inadequate to support the premises’
intended usage as a bar/pub.

Given these concerns we have little confidence that the business operators have a
sufficiently diligent approach to promoting the licensing objectives. Consequently we are
unable to support this application at this time.

Other documents attached
Witness statement
Photograph of refrigerator containing alcohol

E-mail from applicant’s representative

Signed Paul Jones 26" July 2017

Page 43



Page 44



Havering

AT LONDON BOROUG H

STATEMENT OF WITNESS

(Criminal Procedure Rules r27.1(1);
Criminal Justice Act 1967, 5.9, Magistrates’ Court Act 1980, s.5B)

Statement of (name of witness)...Paul JONes..............cooeveeeeeemooo
Age if under 18 (if over 18 insert “over 18”) .. OVEr 18, uuiciiiieeeeeeee e,
Occupation of witness ...Licensing Officer...................

This statement, consisting of two pages each signed by me, is true to the best of my knowledge and belief
and | make it knowing that, if it is tendered in evidence, | shall be liable to prosecution if | have wilfully
stated in it anything | know to be false or do not believe to be true.

| am a Licensing Officer for the London Borough of Havering. | have been
employed in this role since September 2005. My duties include processing
various licence applications and monitoring premises for compliance with the
Licensing Act 2003 (‘the Act). On 3" July 2017 the Licensing Authority
received a s.17 premises licence application via e-mail, submitted by a Mr
Moeen Anwar, apparently on behalf of the applicant, a Mr Adil Haziri. The
application identified the premises in question as Tropoja 99 Victoria Road
Romford RM1 2LX. This application was somewhat unusual insofar as it
arrived via e-mail, rather than having been submitted via the GOV.UK online
service, and for the fact that no mention of the application fee or the
applicant’s intention to pay the fee was made in the e-mail: without the
application fee having been paid the application is invalid. On 4" July 2017 |
received an e-mail from an individual who alleged that the premises in
question was already operating as a functioning bar supplying alcohol to the
public. At approximately 15:45 on 4% July 2017 | made my way to Tropoja.
Seated outside at a table were two gentlemen, one of whom | knew from a
previous premises licence application elsewhere in this borough to be the

premises licence applicant Mr Adil Haziri. The door to the premises was open,

O:\Flare\masters\wilness statemt.00C Pag e 45



permitting general access. | identified myself to Mr Haziri. He rose and stood
in front of the premises’ doorway. | suggested we enter the premises and we
both stepped inside. The second gentleman also stepped inside with us. |
immediately noted that the premises appeared fully decorated, carpeted and
able to accommodate patrons. A number of tables and chairs were located
on the premises’ carpeted floor while a pool table was also present. A bar
was located immediately adjacent to the premises’ front door. Behind the bar
was a glass-fronted refrigerator. On display within this fridge were a selection
of beers and soft drinks. The beers included Becks, Budweiser, Corona,
Peroni and Desperado. The soft drinks included Coke and J20. | took a
photograph of the fridge. | produce this as exhibit PJJO1. The presence of
alcohol at Tropoja caused me some concern as it is a criminal offence
contrary to s.138 of the Act to keep alcohol on a premises for unauthorised
sale and it is also a criminal offence contrary to s.137 of the Act to expose
alcohol for unauthorised sale. | asked Mr Haziri to explain the presence of the
alcohol displayed behind the bar. Mr Haziri stated, “It's for personal
consumption.” | asked if | might speak to Mr Moeen Anwar, the individual who
submitted the application on Mr Haziri's behalf and also the individual
proposed to be the designated premises supervisor (DPS) at the site once the
premises licence is in force. (A DPS is the individual who authorises all
alcohol sales under the authority of a premises licence.) Mr Haziri advised
me that Mr Anwar was not present at the premises. | asked Mr Haziri who
was in charge at the premises. Mr Haziri said that Mg Anwar was in charge. |

thanked Mr Haziri for his time and | left the premises.

( \
h
{):\F1ares\znastersludmﬁs)9 statemt.DOC

Page 46



Dates to be avoided. Delete dates of non availability of withess

Month of | st e o Monthof ..................... . Monthof ...............
123456712345671234'?67
8 | 910|112 13| 14 8l 9 1011121312 8|9 (10111211314
1516 [17 [ 1819 [ 20 [ 21 151617181920 [ 21 1516 | 17 |18 [ 19 | 20 [ 21
22 1231242526 | 27| 28 122 (2324|2526 27|28 2223124252627 28
29 [ 30 | 3 29 |30 | 31 29 | 30 | 31
Monthof ............................ Monthof ..................... ... Monthof .. .ccoovviini
123456712345677234567
1 8 | 9 10111213 14 8 191011121314 8 19 101112171314
15116 [ 17 [ 18| 19 | 20 | 21 115116 [17 |18 [ 19| 20 [ 21 15116 |17 [ 18 [ 19|20 | 21
22 123 | 2425 |26 | 27 | 28 22|23 |24 25|26 |27 |28 22 123 | 2425|2627 |28
29 | 30 | 31 293031 29 | 30 | 31

Contact point if different from above:

Address: London Borough of Havering, Public Protection, Environmental

Health, Mercury House, Mercury Gardens, Romford, Essex.
RM1 3SL

Telephone Number: 01708 432777

Statement taken by (print name).

.....................................................................

..........................................

NOTE: Wherever possible statements should be on foolscap paper.
spacing should be used. One side only of the paper should be used: a s
the first page for headings to be entered by the clerk of the court [justices’
each page should have a wide margin on the left.

If statements are typed double
pace should be left at the top of
chief executive for the court and

Formerly form 13, Magistrates’ Courts’ (Forms) Rules 1981 (SI 1981/653), relating to rule 70 of

the Magistrates’ Courts Rules 1 981, Section 9 of the Criminal Justice Act 1 967 and section 5B of
the Magistrates’ Courts Act 1980].

.........................................

O:\Flare\masters\witness statemt.DOC




Page 48



w¢ Havering

“aeit. LONDON BOROUGH

Licensing Act 2003 Responsible Authority representation

This representation is made by a responsible Authority for the London Borough of Havering
concerning a licence application for the premises as detailed below.

Premises Name and address: Tropoja Café and Bar, 99 Victoria Road, Romford, Essex RM1 21X

Your Name; Onkar Bhogal

Organisation name / name of body

you represent: Havering Council’'s Planning department

Your Address: 5" Floor Mercury House, Mercury Gardens, Romford, RM1 3SL
Email: Onkar.Bhogal@havering.gov.uk
Contact telephone number: 01708 431587

To OBJECT to the proposed premises licence application on the

Summary of representation: specific licensing objective “The prevention of public nuisance”.

Policy Considerations:

The representation takes into account the following licensing policies as set out in the document titied
“Statement of Licensing Policy” with effect from 7" January 2016:

Licensing Policy 1
In considering applications for new licences, variations to existing licences and licence reviews the
Licensing Authority will take the matters listed below into account:
* whether the premises is located in an area of cumulative impact;
* the type of premises and their cumulative impact on the area and the mix of premises in the area;
¢ the location of the premises and the character of the area;
+ the views of the responsible authorities;
» the views of other persons;
* past compliance history of current management;
» the proposed hours of operation;
* the type and number of customers likely to attend the premises;
* whether the applicant is able to demonstrate commitment to a high standard of management, for
example through active participation in the Safe and Sound meetings and pub watch.

Licensing Policy 6
The Licensing Authority considers that, in the interests of clarity and transparency, applicants should
normally have in place the relevant planning consent for the intended use and hours of operation, or
otherwise have lawful planning status, before making an application for a premises licence. However
every application will be considered on its merits on a case by case basis.

Licensing Policy 7
When dealing with new and variation applications the Licensing Authority will give more favourable
consideration to applications with the following closing times:

Public Houses and Bars 23:00 hours-Sunday to Thursday
Midnight —Friday and Saturday

Page 49




Nightclubs 0100 hours Sunday to Thursday
02:00 hours Friday and Saturday

Restaurants and Cafes 23:00 hours Sunday to Thursday
Midnight- Friday and Saturday

Off licences 23:00 Monday to Sundays

Hot food and drink supplied by takeaways, fast food premises:
Midnight- Sunday to Thursdays
01:00 Friday and Saturday

Hotel residents only 24 hours sale of alcohol for on sales only.

Consideration will also be given to the type of area that the premises is located in with regulated
activities normally being permitted until 23.30 in residential areas and 00.30 in mixed use areas. These
hours are not pre-determined and each application will be considered on its merits.

Licensing Polic
When assessing the applicant's or licensee’s ability to demonstrate a commitment to high standards

of management the Licensing Authority will take into account whether the applicant or licensee:

« Can demonstrate comprehensive knowledge of best practice

+ Has sought advice from the responsible authorities

« Has implemented any advice that has been given by the responsible authorities

. s able to understand verbal and written advice and legal requirements

. Can demonstrate knowledge of the licensing objectives, relevant parts of the Licensing Policy and
their responsibilities under the Licensing Act 2003

. ls able to run their business lawfully and in accordance with good business practices

. |s able to demonstrate a track record of compliance with legal requirements.

Where there is a history of non-compliance associated with the premises the Licensing Authority is

unlikely to grant a new or variation application unless there is evidence of significant improvement in

management standards.

Licensing Policy 14
The Licensing Authority is committed to protecting the amenity of residents and businesses in the

vicinity of licenced premises, particularly when late hours have been sought. Where relevant
representations are received, the Licensing Authority will impose appropriate restrictions or controls on
the licence to support the prevention of undue noise disturbance from licensed premises.

Representation:

The use of the property as a café and bar has not been subject to an assessment by the planning
department, It must be noted that due to the location of the premises any planning applications for a café
and bar at these premises would not be supported by the planning department, and so it is unlikely that the
expectlations set out in licensing policy 6 will be met. However, as the planning and licensing regimes are
separale | have considered the merits of the licence application below.

It is noted from the application form that the premises will have customers present on the premises during its
opening hours. This confirms the Council's concerns in respect of issues of public nuisance with comings-
and-goings of customers to the property. This confirms that as the applicants have not sought advice from
responsible authorities and do not have planning permission for the change of use to Café and bar. They
have therefore not complied with Licensing Policy 8.

However, the licence application does not refer to the impact the activities proposed in the licence will have
on the surrounding area. The main concerns which have not been addressed include:

Page 50




The effect on parking in the local area.

* The potential of additional litter and rubbish being produced during times which the premises is open
to customers / members of the public.

* The impact of introducing a café and bar which operates from 8am every day on the local residents
and the affect this will have in the vicinity.

This property is situated on a busy road with mixture of commercial uses, resident's blocks and
residential properties. There have not been any steps outlined on having additional persons
coming and going to the property including the additional vehicle movements in the late
evenings will affect the local residents and the local road network.

Without further information, | am unable to determine if the correct measures are in place to completely
satisfy the concerns set out above. Consequently the application for the licence does not meet the
expectations set out in Licensing Policy 14.

Given the arguments as set out above, the licence application fails to meet the requirements and
expectations set out in Licensing Policies 1, 6, 7, 8 and 14, and the planning department’s concerns on the
prevention of public nuisance have not been alleviated though the licence application. As this is the case, |
ask that the licensing committee defer their decision on granting a licence application until more information
with regards to the operating schedule is provided and planning permission for the change of use is
obtained. If the committee is not minded to do this, then the planning services would completely object to the
licence application.

It must also be noted that as the site does not benefit from planning permission for use as a Café and bar;
should the unauthorised uses commence the planning enforcement team will not hesitate to instigate
enforcement proceedings against interested parties.

Complaint and Inspection History (if applicable):

No visits to the property were undertaken.

There are no recent planning applications relating to the premises.

7
Signed: K Dated: 1% August 2017

-

Page 51




Page 52



P POLICE TOTAL POLICING

Territorial Policing

Mr Kasey Conway
Havering Licensing Authority

KD - Havering Borough
KD - Romford Police Station

Romford Police Station

Mercury House 19 Main Road
Mercury Gardens Romford
Romford RM1 3BJ
Essex Telephone: 01708-779171
RM1 3SL Facsimile:
Email:

Oisin.Daly@met.pnn.police.uk
www.met.police.uk

Your ref:
Qur ref:

02ND August 2017

Dear Mr Conway,

Police Representation to the Application for a new Premises Licence at
TROPOJA, 99 VICTORIA RD, ROMFORD, RM1 2LX

| certify that | have considered the application shown above and | wish to make
representations that the likely effect of the grant of the application in its current
format is detrimental to the Licensing Objectives for the reasons indicated below.

1. The prevention of crime and disorder

2. Prevention of public nuisance

The Prevention of Crime and Disorder

The initial application received had little detail on how the business intended to
operate, police licensing officers attended the premises to speak with the owners.
The premises itself appears to be set up in the format of a social bar, there is a small
bar to the right as you enter the door and a pool table to the rear. The premises
licence holder stated that he intended to Operate as a restaurant, however, there are
no kitchen facilities within the building.

A revised schedule of conditions was offered by the applicant via their agent Mr
Hopkins. The conditions offered are more robust than those first put forward,
however, there is a concern that tﬁtageerﬁl?,es licence holder does not fully



understand his obligations under the licensing act, this in spite of having been
involved in the industry for a number of years.

The venue does not having planning permission and in operating as a bar may be in
breach of planning legislation.

Prevention of Public Nuisance

The venue is situated within a highly residential area, the property itself has a flat
above it and it is not known whether the property has adequate soundproofing to
prevent ambient noise escaping through the roof.

The police have not been fully reassured that the premises licence holder has a full
understanding of the conditions that have been added on their behalf. We would ask
that if the sub-committee are minded to grant the application then the following
conditions be added to the current operating schedule offered:

1. All windows and doors to be closed past 8pm save for persons entering and
exiting via the front door.

2. The capacity of the venue shall be limited to 40 persons including staff.

If | can be of any further assistance please feel free to contact me

Yours sincerely,
Oisin Daly

PC 2364EA
Licensing officer
Havering

Page 54



IVE Mr Robert Jones
' 138 Victoria Road
28 JUL 2017 Romford

| Essex RM1 2NX
th
247 july 2017

Mr Paul Jones, Licensing Officer
London Borough of Havering
Public Protection, Environment
Town Hall, Main Road
Romford, Essex

RM1 3BD

Your Reference PJJ/019283

Dear Mr Jones

Re:  Licensing Act 2003-Premises Licence Application
Tropoja 99 Victoria Road, Romford, RM1 21X

We wish to make you aware of the strong objection that we have regarding the proposed licencing
application mentioned above.

As an immediate neighbour to the site we are of the view that the proposed licence will have a serious
impact on our standard of living. Our specific objections are; -

The Prevention of Public Nuisance and Public Safety

months contributing to noise levels.

There is a very busy carwash next door of which both premises share vehicle access and with the
consumption of alcohol will become a health and safety issue.

The Prevention of Crime and Disorder

With the consumption of alcohol on this site, the Police and Emergency Services will come under
increased pressure to cope with drunken disturbances and crime that this will bring to the area.

We already have a licenced public house which is situated only a few metres away from many
residential properties and this on occasion creates unwelcome disturbances which have a detrimental
impact on residents and to grant another licence directly in this area will only compound the problem,

I think it’s worth mentioning also that the previous residents of 99 Victoria Road were raided by the
palice and subsequently closed for dealing in illegal substances. These recent events of course make
residents very apprehensive that this could happen again.

Continued: -

Page 55




Highway safety inadequate parking and access

Parking is already an issue in Victoria Road and the proposed nature of use for this dwelling will increase
vehicles coming into the area requiring a parking space. The property has limited parking and we have
already witnessed double parking along Victoria Road which prohibits access for emergency vehicles and

buses.

We believe the proposed application would demonstrably harm the environment and the right to enjoy
a quiet safe residential environment.

Yours sincerely

P~

Mr Robert Jones

Page 56




	Agenda
	4 APPLICATION FOR A PREMISES LICENCE FOR TROPOJA CAFE & BAR 99 VICTORIA ROAD, ROMFORD ESSEX RM1 2LX

